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UNITED STATES BISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRATL, DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

RAYMOND P. CACCIOLLI, individually ;4.6- )c(!sglso- 050 25 CBM (icﬁ

on behalf of all others similarly situated,
CLASS ACTION

Plaintiff,
COMPLAINT FOR RESTITUTION

AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF UNDER
CALIFORNIA BUSINESS AND
PROFESSIONS CODE §17200 et seq.
AND §17500 et seq., FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL
CODE §1750 ef seq., FOR DAMAGES
AND OTHER RELIEF FOR BREACH
OF CONTRACT AND QUASI-
CONTRACT

V.

LEVI STRAUSS & COMPANY and J.C.
PENNEY COMPANY, INC.

Defendant.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
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I. INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff Raymond P. Caccioli, individually and on behalf of all others similarly
situated and on behalf of the general public complains against Defendant Levi Strauss &
Company (“Levi Strauss”) and J.C. Penney Company, Inc. (“J.C. Penney’s”), individually
and through any affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, divisions, departments, or agents as
follows:

l. This action involves Defendants’ perpetration of a false “JCPenney’s Round
Trip Flight Voucher Promotion 2007 (“Dockers Flight Promotion™ or “Promotion”)
throughout the United States. From its California headquarters, Levi Strauss conceived,
designed and offered the Dockers Flight Promotion to consumers throughout California
and the nation who purchased at least $125 of Levi Strauss’s Dockers-brand products from
J.C. Penney’s during the week of Father’s Day 2007. The Promotion was co-branded as
offered by both Dockers and J.C. Penney’s. When valid purchasers actually attempted to
redeem the Promotion in accordance with the Promotion’s Terms and Conditions,
Defendants simply ignored them or otherwise refused to honor the Promotion.

2. Many consumers throughout the United States, including Plaintiff, paid
Defendants $125 for both Dockers clothing and the roundtrip flight that Defendants
offered. Unfortunately for these consumers, in almost all cases Defendants either: (1)
outright refused to respond to attempts to redeem the “free” travel offer; {2) obstructed the
redemption with bogus excuses not contemplated by the Promotion’s Terms and
Conditions; and/or (3) charged valid purchasers undisclosed, unauthorized fees to actually
collect the “free” travel.

3. The World Wide Web is awash with consumer complaints arising from
Defendants’ Dockers Flight Promotion. These complaints detail the drastic measures
Defendants have taken to stop customers from obtaining the roundtrip flight they paid for.
Consumers pervasively describe their payment of $125 or more to J.C. Penney’s, complete

satisfaction of the Promotion’s Terms and Conditions of the Dockers Flight Promotion,
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and the inevitable refusal by Defendants to fully honor the Promotion. According to one
complaint, Defendants’ third-party administrator for the Promotion represented that the
Promotion would not be honored because unexpected increases in airline fares made it no
longer economically worthwhile.

4, Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of all purchasers of Dockers-brand
products in the United States who paid for and qualified for the benefits of the Dockers
Flight Promotion but who received either nothing, were forced to accept a benefit of lesser
value, or were forced to pay undisclosed fees to receive a roundtrip airline ticket.

5. By offering the Dockers Flight Promotion and then failing to provide it,
Defendants violated the Unfair Competition Law, Business & Professions Code §17200 et
seq. (“UCL”), the Consumer Legal Remedies Act, California Civil Code §1750 et seq.
(“CLRA”), and duties established at common law barring breach of contract and unjust
enrichment. By their misconduct, Defendants have violated state and common law and
retained ill-gotten gains at the expense of Plaintiff Class members. Plaintiff is entitled to
restitution, damages, equitable relief, and any and all other available remedies.

6. Since Defendants engaged in their misconduct with respect to Plaintiff’s
transaction in the same manner as to numerous other consumers, a class action is the
superior means of resolving this issue for all affected consumers.

II. PARTIES

7. At all times relevant hereto, Plaintiff Raymond Caccioli was a resident of
California and resides at 4962 Alcove Ave., Valley Village, California.

8. Defendant Levi Strauss is a Delaware corporation, which maintains its
headquarters and principal place of business at 1155 Battery St., San Francisco, California
94111. Levi Strauss was the self-ascribed “Sponsor” of the Promotion, and is responsible
for the acts and omissions of its chosen “Administrator,” TLC Marketing, and for the
misrepresentations described in this Complaint.

9. Defendant J.C. Penney’s is a Delaware corporation, which maintains its

headquarters and principal place of business at 601 Legacy Drive, Plano, TX 75024. I.C.
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Penney’s is a retail department store and is responsible for the misconduct alleged herein
as the co-branded offeror of the Promotion, including but not limited to the
misrepresentations and other misconduct described herein.

I1I. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10.  This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005
(“CAFA”), 28 U.S.C. 1332(d). Plaintiff seeks to prosecution this class action on a
nationwide basis, satisfying CAFA’s diversity requirement. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A).
On information and belief, there were over 40,000 Promotion-qualifying purchases of
Dockers apparel or accessories at a cost of $125 each. Plaintiffs also asserts entitlement to
attorneys fees. Therefore, by a preponderance of the evidence, the matter in controversy
exceeds $5,000,000.00. Id. at § 1332(d)(2).

11.  Plaintiff has standing to assert all claims set forth below. Plaintiff and all
Class members suffered injury-in-fact and lost money as a direct result of Defendants’
misconduct described herein. Defendants induced Plaintiff and members of the Class to
buy $125 or more of Dockers apparel by promising to also provide a round-trip domestic
flight. After receiving their money from Plaintiff and the Class, Defendants simply turned
around and refused to provide the flight.

12. Defendant Levi Strauss transacts business and maintains its principal place of
business within the State of California. Fundamentally all of the events, conduct or
omissions giving rise to the claims herein occurred in or emanated from this state.
Defendants engaged in the complained-of transactions with Plaintiff Caccioli in this
District. Substantial decisions and corporate policies regarding the misconduct challenged
herein were made at or emanated from Levi Strauss’s offices in San Francisco, California
and affected Class members’ transactions both inside and outside of California. Further,
Defendants have consented to jurisdiction and venue in this Court by removing a lawsuit
brought by other claimants arising from the same course of misconduct to and engaging in
ongoing litigation in this Court. This Court accordingly has jurisdiction over this action

and venue is proper in this Court.
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IV. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL COUNTS

A. The Dockers Flight Promotion

13.  The misconduct underlying this action is not complex. Called the “Round
Trip Flight Promotion 2007,” Defendants offered a round trip airline ticket to anyone who
between June 3 through June 9, 2007, purchased at least $125 of Dockers-brand men’s
apparel or accessories from JC Penney’s, either at retail stores, online at jcpenney.com, or
otherwise. Dockers is a clothing brand owned by Levi Strauss. Levi Strauss sells a variety
of casual clothing under the Dockers brand, such as slacks, golf shirts, sweaters and hats.

14, The roundtrip flight Defendants offered was not “free”—it was a package
deal requiring cash outlays from Plaintiff and the Class. The package contained a certain
amount of Dockers apparel and a round-trip domestic flight to certain U.S. cities. The
minimum outlay for this package was $125, plus, eventually, airport taxes and fees. Thus,
the apparel received by purchasers constituted a fraction of the value (if any) of the total
package, and purchasers who sought a flight voucher did not receive the promised goods
in exchange for the money they paid.

15. The Terms and Conditions for the Promotion were also non-complex and
detail Defendants’ broken promises to Plaintiff and the proposed Class.

16. Inrelevant part, after purchasing “$125 or more of men’s Dockers apparel
and/or accessories,” Defendants directed valid purchasers to “Obtain a JC Penney’s Round
Trip Flight Voucher Promotion 2007 redemption form” (“Redemption Form™) either from
the JC Penney store itself or by download from the Internet.

17. Consumers were then directed to “Complete and mail the [Redemption] Form
in an envelope, along with your ORIGINAL sales receipt with the Qualifying Purchases
circled[.]”

18.  Defendant then represented that, “Upon receipt and verification by third
party administrator TLC Marketing of the request, TLC Marketing will send the verified
participant a Dockers Free Flight Voucher and Booking Form (“Booking Form™).

-5
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19.  Next, Defendants directed consumers to “Complete the Booking Form,
including your selection of departure city and three different destination and date
preferences, and return it to TLC marketing at the address provided with the Booking
Form.”

20.  The departure cities available under the Promotion numbered in the dozens,
including all major cities in the United States and thirteen cities in California, including
Los Angeles.

21.  Thereafter, Defendants promised that “Within 10-14 days of receipt of the
completed Booking Form, TLC Marketing will contact the participant to confirm travel
itinerary. Additional passengers may be booked at this time through TLC Marketing if
requested.”

22. Next, Defendants promised:

Upon confirmation of reservation, TLC Marketing will send participant an e-
Ticket and itinerary or, if participant chooses, a paper ticket and itinerary.
Travel under this program is ONLY from one of the designated US airports to
one of the following destinations in the continental US: Boston, New York
City, Washington D.C., Miami, Los Angeles, San Francisco, Las Vegas,
Chicago, Orlando, or Dallas.

23. The Terms and Conditions also noted that the consumer, and not Defendants,
would be responsible for paying all “taxes and fees” charged by third party airports and
airlines. Nowhere did Defendants disclose that consumers would be required to pay any
“fees or taxes” charged by Defendants or their third party administrator in order to obtain
the roundtrip flight.

24, Finally, Defendant required all participants in the Promotion to book their
travel by July 31, 2008.

B. Plaintiff Caccioli’s Fruitless Attempt to Obtain His Roundtrip Flight
25.  Plaintiff Caccioli was one of the many consumers across the United States

who was victimized by Defendants’ Dockers Flight Promotion.
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26.  In June 2007, Plaintiff saw an advertisement for the Dockers Flight
Promotion in the Los Angeles Times. Defendants were responsible for the content of such
advertisements. The advertisement indicated that if he paid Defendants $125 or more for
Dockers-brand clothing from a JC Penney entity, he would also receive a roundtrip airline
ticket. Although Plaintiff does not normally purchase Dockers clothing, he recognized the
value of the offer.

27.  On June 6, 2007, Plaintiff traveled to the JC Penney’s store at the Glendale
Galleria Mall in Glendale, California. Plaintiff did not normally shop at this mall, or at JC
Penney’s, but he determined it was the most convenient location to participate in the
Promotion. Plaintiff purchased $146.65 worth of Levi Strauss’s Dockers-brand men’s
clothing for the purpose of also receiving a roundtrip flight under the Dockers Flight
Promotion. Plaintiff received a Redemption Form at the time of purchase.

28. Plaintiff mailed in the Redemption Form, along with his original receipt, to
obtain a Booking Form in accordance with the Promotion’s Terms and Conditions.
Thereafter, Defendants, whether on their own or through their agent TLC, verified the
validity of Plaintiff’s purchases and sent Plaintiff a Booking Form in the mail.

29.  In June 2008, Plaintiff completed, signed and dated the Booking Form. On or
about June 10, 2008, Plaintiff sent the Booking Form to Defendants’ agent and third party
administrator via registered U.S. mail. Plaintiff later received the signed return receipt,
which was hand-dated June 23, 2008.

30. On his completed Booking Form, Plaintiff requested Los Angeles
International Airport (“LAX”) as the departure airport. Plaintiff requested New York,
Boston, and Washington D.C. as his “Preferred,” “2nd Choice” and “3rd Choice
Destination cities respectively. Plaintiff also provided three sets of preferred travel dates.
Plaintiff requested travel dates well within the time period required by Defendant.

31.  On the Booking Form Plaintiff completed and properly submitted, Defendants
promised, “You will be notified within 14 days of receipt of this request form regarding

availability.”
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32. Neither Levi Strauss, J.C. Penney’s, their agent third party administrator, nor
anyone else ever contacted Plaintiff regarding his Booking Form or anything else related
to the Promotion.

33.  Plaintiff made numerous telephone calls — well into August 2008 — to attempt
to obtain his roundtrip flight from Defendants. To this day, neither Defendants, their third
party administrator, nor anyone else have ever contacted him regarding his Booking Form
or the Dockers Flight Promotion. Plaintiff never received confirmation of a flight.
Defendants never booked a flight on Plaintiff’s behalf as promised.

V. CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

34, Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of a Class of persons pursuant to Fed. R.
Civ. P. 23.

35. The Class consists of:

All persons who purchased $125 or more of qualifying Dockers clothing

between June 3 and June 9, 2007, from any J.C. Penney’s retail entity,

submitted a valid Booking Form, and did not receive a round-trip flight or
substitute of equal or greater value from Defendants.
Specifically excluded from the Class are the Defendants and their employees, as well as all
employees of the Court. Specifically included in the Class are consumers who submitted a
Booking From but did not receive a roundtrip flight as promised, whether the consumers
were required to pay additional, undisclosed amounts to receive a flight, were forced to
accept a substitute of lesser value, or whether they received no flight at all.

36. The class is so numerous that joinder of all members 1s impracticable. While
the number of Class members 1s unknown to Plaintiff at this time, Plaintiff 1s informed and
believes that the Class exceeds 40,000 members.

37. There is a well-established community of interest in the questions of law and

fact affecting the parties to be represented in this action.
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38. There are questions of law and fact common to the Class which predominate

over questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. These common questions

of law and fact include, but are not limited to:

a.

Whether Defendants offered the Dockers Flight Promotion to the
general public;

Whether Defendants agreed to provide roundtrip airfare to anyone who
agreed to pay at least $125 for Dockers clothing and otherwise satisfied
the Promotion’s Terms and Conditions;

Whether Defendants failed to provide roundtrip airfare to anyone who
agreed to pay at least $125 for Dockers clothing and otherwise satisfied
the Promotion’s Terms and Conditions;

Whether, instead of providing roundtrip airfare, Defendants required
consumers who satisfied the Promotion’s Terms and Conditions to
accept something of lesser value or nothing at all;

Whether Defendants required consumers who satisfied the Promotion’s
Terms and Conditions to pay undisclosed fees in order to obtain a
roundtrip flight;

Whether Defendants’ misconduct described herein is unlawful, unfair,
unconscionable or fraudulent, in violation of Bus. & Prof. Code §
17200 et seq.;

Whether Defendants failed to administer the Promotion in compliance
with their offer and representations;

Whether Defendants failed to monitor the activities of the Promotion’s
third party administrator;

Whether Defendants failed to control the activities of the Promotion’s

third party administrator;

-9_
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i. Whether Defendants failed to correct any failures of its third party
administrator in fulfilling the Promotion in compliance with
Defendants’ offer;

k. Whether Defendants failed to correct any failures of the Promotion’s
third party administrator to contact those who submitted valid Booking
Forms to arrange flight reservations, in compliance with Defendants’
offer;

1. Whether Defendants, themselves or via their third party administrator,
charged undisclosed fees purported to be airline or airport taxes and
fees, as a prerequisite to obtaining a roundtrip flight under the
Promotion;

m.  Whether Defendants should provide restitution to Plaintiff and the
Class; and

n. The amount and type of damages and other relief to be awarded to
Plaintiff and the Class.

Resolving these issues for Plaintiff or any other Class member will also resolve the claims
of the entire Class.

39. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class.
Plaintiff has the same interests as all members of the Class in that the nature and character
of the challenged conduct is the same. Plaintiff and all members of the Class challenge
Defendants’ conduct under the same legal theories. The primary and predominant issue in
dispute is whether or not Defendants offered to include roundtrip airfare along with
Dockers clothing in exchange for $125 and thereafter declined to provide the full benefits
of the Promotion to eligible consumers.

40.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the
members of the Class. Plaintiff has retained competent counsel experienced in consumer
Class litigation. Plaintiff is a member of the Class and does not have interests antagonistic

to or in conflict with members of the Class. Neither Plaintiff nor Plaintiff’s counsel have
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any interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this claim for the Class.
Plaintiff’s claims are the same as those of the claims of the Class, which all arise from the
same operative facts and are based on the same legal theories.

41.  Certification of the Class pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3). As alleged
above, several common questions of fact and law predominate in this action. The
overarching issue boils down to this: Did Defendants make good on their offer to provide
a “roundtrip flight” to Plaintiff and members of the Class in exchange for paying $125 for
Dockers-brand clothes? Individualized issues, such as whether a consumer was contacted
at all versus whether he or she was contacted but told a flight was unavailable, carry no
great weight in light of Defendants’ concrete obligation to provide a roundtrip flight. The
common issues predominate over any individualized ones.

42. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy because the membership of the Class is so numerous and
sufficiently geographically widespread that joinder of all members is impracticable. In
addition, the prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the Class would
create a risk of incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants and inconsistent or
varying adjudications for all parties. There will be no difficulty in the management of this
case as a class action.

43. A class action is an appropriate method for the fair and efficient adjudication
of this controversy. The interest of Class members in individually controlling the
prosecution of separate claims against Defendants is non-existent because it is not feasible
for them to bring individual claims. The nature of the practices complained of, the offer of
a roundtrip flight in exchange for paying $125 for Dockers c¢lothing, to large numbers of
individuals, makes a class action superior.

44,  The number of unfair transactions that took place can be determined through
use of Defendants’ records, files, billing records, and Booking Forms in its or their

administrator’s possession.
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45.  Certification of the Class pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) is also
appropriate. A representative action under Bus. and Prof. Code §17200 ef seq. is
appropriate to secure restitution for all affected members of the Class and the general
public and to obtain injunctive relief.

46. Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs in prosecuting this
Complaint against Defendant under Civil Code § 1780(¢).

47. Plaintiff is also entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to
Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, because:

a. A successful outcome in this action will result in the enforcement of
important rights affecting the public interest;

b. This action will result in the cessation of business practices which are
unfair, unlawful and deceptive, and will result in restitution and/or
disgorgement of monies which Defendant should not equitably retain,
thereby providing significant benefit to the Class and the general
public; and/or

C. Such fees should not, in the interest of justice, be paid out of any
recovery.

VI. INJURY

48. By reason of the above-described conduct and bad faith, Defendants caused
actual harm, injury-in-fact, and loss of money to Plaintiff and each member of the Class.
Plaintiff was injured and overcharged in the following ways:

a. Plaintiff spent $125 to receive clothing and a roundtrip flight from
Defendant but did not receive a roundtrip flight;

b. The value of an airline flight is exponentially greater than the value of
$125-worth of Dockers-brand clothing.

c. The materiality of Defendants’ roundtrip airline flight representations

are plainly established by the simple fact Plaintiff actually attempted to
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redeem the Promotion by obtaining, completing and remitting a
Booking Form;

Plaintiff is dissatisfied with receiving only part of what he was
promised (clothing) and not receiving the remainder of what he was
promised (a roundtrip airline flight);

If Plaintiff attempted to obtain substitute air travel, he would have had
to pay for airfare himself, and he would not have been required to
purchase Dockers-brand clothing as well;

Defendants, as the co-branded sponsors of the promotion and the
parties benefitting directly from consumers’ payments under the
Promotion, never disclosed that their promises would not be honored if
their chosen third party administrator for the Promotion failed to bock
flights;

Defendants also failed to provide a flight to other consumers even
though they properly submitted a valid Booking Request form;

Other consumers failed to fully receive a flight because they were
deceptively charged undisclosed fees, the overages of which
Defendants or their third party administrator retained;

Defendants failed to monitor, supervise, control, and correct the
activities of their third party administrator and failed to disclose to
consumers that they would not honor their promises in the event that
providing and arranging for roundtrip flights became economically
unpalatable to Defendants or their third party administrator.

Plaintiff and Class members have each been deprived of $125 cash,
requiring restitution, and also have been deprived of the benefit of their
bargains, a roundtrip flight, requiring damages amounting to the fair
market value of a round trip airline ticket during the time period in

question, or, for those who received a flight but were charged
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undisclosed fees, the return of the fees in excess of what the

Promotion’s Terms and Conditions permit.
VII. CAUSES OF ACTION
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(VIOLATION OF BUS. & PROF. CODE §17200 et seq.)
49.  Plaintiff incorporates the allegations of all the foregoing paragraphs by

reference, as if fully set forth herein.

50. Plaintiff brings this action individually, on behalf of the Class, and on behalf
of the general public pursuant to § 17200 et. seq. of the Bus. & Prof. Code, the Unfair
Competition Act.

Unfair Business Acts

51. Defendants caused Plaintiff and Class members to pay more for Dockers-
brand clothing than they otherwise would have paid absent the promise to arrange for a
“free flight” on a third party airline.

52. The materiality of Defendants’ offer and representations to Plaintift and Class
1s established ipso facto by the performance of the Plaintiff and Class members. If the
promise of a flight were not material, Plaintiff and Class members would not have
purchased the Dockers clothing, mailed in the Redemption Form with their original
receipts to obtain a Booking Form, completed and mailed in the Booking Form, and
otherwise attempted to redeem the Promotion.

53. Defendants’ misconduct amounted to a systematic breach of its contracts with
consumers. By virtue of their Promotion, Defendants made a uniform offer of a roundtrip
flight to Plaintiff and members of the Class. Plaintiff and members of the Class accepted
this offer by paying $125. Defendants then, without any excuse, simply declined to
perform and provide the flight.

- 14—
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54.  The substantial harm caused by Defendants’ improper business practices
outweighs any benefit, justification, or motivation of Defendants. Plaintiff and other
participating consumers could not have reasonably avoided or anticipated Defendants’
failure to provide what was promised. Their free market decisions were unjustifiably
hampered by the conduct of the Defendant. The Promotion was clearly stated and it was
false on its face—consumers did not receive a “free flight.”

55. California law does not provide any safe harbor for Defendants’ misconduct.

Fraudulent Business Acts

56. Members of the public, as reasonable consumers, were likely to be deceived
by Defendants’ express, advertised offers, made in writing and published to the general
public. Defendants are well-known, venerable, and credible companies who are generally
expected by the general consuming public to stand behind their products and promises.
Such consumers, along with Plaintiff, were damaged by Defendants’ misrepresentations
and false statements, as the roundtrip flight promise had great value and was a material
part of the transaction, as demonstrated by Plaintiff and Class members attempt to obtain
and submit Booking Request Forms.

57. Plaintiff satisties the requisite level of specificity for pleading a violation of
section 17200’s protection against fraudulent business acts. See Y 13-33, supra.
Particulars of the fraud are summarized here:

Who: Levi Strauss and J.C. Penney’s

b. What: Expressly offered to provide a roundtrip flight in exchange for
paying $125 for Dockers-brand men’s apparel;

c. When: The week of Father’s Day, June 2007;
Where: Inthe Los Angeles Times and at Glendale Galleria Mall’s JC
Penney store in Glendale, California, among elsewhere throughout

California and the United States;
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e. How: By printed advertisement and via the World Wide Web on
websites identified by Defendants and detailing the Terms and
Conditions of the Promotion.

58.  Plaintiff and consumers similarly situated were damaged by Defendants’ act
because Defendant did not provide or arrange for any roundtrip flights as they promised
they would.

59. The acts complained of herein, and each of them, constitute unfair, unlawful
or fraudulent business practices in violation of Business and Professions Code §17200 ex.
seq. Such acts and violations have not abated and will continue to occur unless enjoined.

60. The unfair business practices and fraudulent acts set forth above have and
continue to injure Plaintiffs, the Class, and the general public and cause the loss of money.
These violations have unjustly enriched Defendants at the expense of the Class. As a
result, Plaintiff, the Class and the general public are entitled to injunctive relief, restitution,
and other equitable relief.

61. Restitution under the UCL is available where the sum at issue can be traced to
particular funds or property in Defendants’ possession. The amount awarded should
restore to Plaintiff and Class members, the persons in interest, the money Defendants
acquired by means of unfair competition. Because Defendants bundled articles of clothing
with a roundtrip flight in both their promotions and the Promotion’s Terms and
Conditions, Plaintiff and Class members had an ownership interest in both items as soon as
their money was accepted and the forms were duly filled out. Under the UCL, “free”
items bundled with set-priced items are subject to claims of restitution if they are not in
fact provided for free. As bundled, the clothes and roundtrip flight constituted a package
deal, for which each Class member paid the minimum $125. The value of the flight
outweighed the value of the clothes. Therefore, a significant portion of the $125 (an
amount to be determined at trial) paid by and traceable to each Class member should be

returned as restitution.
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62. Restitution is available when an ownership interest is created and when
money to be returned is traceable to that ownership interest, i.e. a significant portion of the
$125 cash outlay. It has nothing to do with whether an *“expectation” to receive something
has been created. All consumers “expect” to receive the goods they pay for. Once they
paid their $125, Plaintiff and Class members expected to receive both their clothing and
the roundtrip flight. They had an ownership interest in those goods and the $125 is
traceable to those goods. There is no distinction between the two in terms of expectation.
The term of art “expectation damages” would be the price of substitute performance, i.e.,
the fair market value price of a round-trip flight. Plaintiff and the Class do not seek that
remedy under the UCL, nor could they under current law. Plaintiff and the Class seek that
remedy elsewhere in their Complaint.

63. This is not a case where Plaintiff and Class members received the benefit of
their bargain, having obtained all the bargained-for products at the bargained-for price.
For everyone who filled out a flight redemption form, the roundtrip flight was an essential
part of the $125 bargain, causing an injury in fact when they did not receive it as promised.

64. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff and each member of the Class are
entitled to recover from Defendants restitution of fees paid, an accounting, injunctive
relief, declaratory relief, the cost of bringing this action (including reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs), and any other relief allowed by law and deemed just and equitable in the

circumstances.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(FALSE ADVERTISING IN VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA
CIVIL CODE § 17500)
65. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations of all the foregoing paragraphs by

reference, as if fully set forth herein.
66. With intent directly or indirectly to dispose of personal property and to

perform services and to induce the public to enter into obligations thereto, Defendants
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caused to be made and disseminated before the public in California and disseminated from
California before the public in many other states, in newspapers and other advertising
devices, including over the Internet, statements concerning such personal property and
services that were untrue and misleading, and which by the exercise of reasonable care
should be known to be untrue and misleading. i.e., Defendants advertised its untrue and
misleading offer in newspapers and on placards in stores.

67. Defendants should have known through reasonable investigation whether
there were able to make good on their commitment to arrange flights for consumers who
paid $125 for Dockers-brand apparel. Defendants knew they had no back up plan in place
to fulfill their promise in the case they or their administrator failed to arrange flights for
Defendants’ customers. Defendants’ intent not to fulfill their Promotion became painfully
obvious to Plaintiff and the Class by the fact Defendants made no effort to contact them or
even attempt to make them whole. Defendants only contingency plan was to attempt an
unenforceable get-out-of-jail-free clause in its Promotion which asserts consumers have no
legal rights against Defendants should they refuse to honor the Promotion

68. Members of the public, as reasonable consumers, were likely to be deceived
by Defendants’ express, advertised offers, made in writing and published to the general
public. The statements were not mere puffery. Defendants are well-known, venerable,
and credible companies who are generally expected by the general consuming public to
stand behind their products and promises. Such consumers, along with Plaintiff, were
damaged by Defendants’ misrepresentations and false statements, as the roundtrip flight
promise had great value and was a material part of the transaction, as demonstrated by

Plaintiff’s and Class members’ attempts to redeem the Promotion.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA CONSUMERS’ LEGAL REMEDIES ACT,
CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE §§1750-1782)
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69. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations of all the foregoing paragraphs by
reference, as if fully set forth herein.

70. The CLRA’s protections, like the UCL's, are cumulative and, therefore, are
“in addition to any other procedures or remedies for any violation or conduct provided for
in any other law.” Civ. Code §1752.

71. By entering into the subject transactions with Defendants, Plaintiff and the
members of the Class are consumers as that term is defined in Civil Code §1761 who
sought, by purchase, goods and services for personal, family, or household use.

72.  The transactions at issue involve the purchase and sale of clothing, flights,
and flight booking services personal, family, or household use.

73. The CLRA broadly defines the term “services,” as follows: “Services" means
work, labor, and services for other than a commercial or business use, including services
furnished in connection with the sale or repair of goods.” Cal. Civ. Code, §1761(b).

74. Defendants have violated California Civil Code, §§ 1770(a)(9), (10), and
(17), which state,

(a) The following unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts
or practices undertaken by any person in a transaction intended to result or
which results in the sale or lease of goods or services to any consumer are
unlawful:

(9) Advertising goods or services with intent not to sell them as advertised.

(10) Advertising goods or services with intent not to supply reasonably
expectable demand, unless the advertisement discloses a limitation of
quantity.

% 3k Xk
(17) Representing that the consumer will receive a rebate, discount, or other

economic benefit, if the earning of the benefit is contingent on an event to
occur subsequent to the consummation of the transaction.
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Cal. Civ. Code § 1770 (West 2008).

75.  Inwviolation of California Civil Code, § 1770(a)(9), Defendants advertised a
roundtrip flight, in exchange for a paying a certain amount for other merchandise, with the
intent not to provide the promised flight if it became economically unpalatable to do so.

76.  In violation of California Civil Code, section 1770(a)(10), Defendants
advertised a roundtrip flight with the intent not to supply the reasonably expectable
demand for a roundtrip flight, promised in exchange for a purchase of other merchandise,
if it became economically unpalatable to do so. Defendants disclosed no limitation on
quantity of flights available and, in fact, promised to provide an item of equal or greater
value in place of flights.

77. Inviolation of California Civil Code, § 1770(17), Defendants represented that
purchasers of Dockers-brand merchandise would receive the economic benefit of a
roundtrip flight, despite the fact that Defendants deceptively and misleadingly did not
inform their customers that obtaining the flight was contingent upon 1) Defendants’
subsequent determination that actually providing a roundtrip flight would be economically
palatable to Defendants and 2) customers’ payment of “fees” or “taxes” not disclosed
under the Promotion’s terms and conditions.

78. Defendants’ violations of Civil Code § 1770, described throughout, present a
continuing threat to Class members and members of the public in that Defendants continue
to engage in these practices, continue to refuse to return amounts paid by consumers, and
continue to make representations in derogation of their state and common law obligations.
Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to injunctive relief from this continuing conduct.

79. By letter dated July 2, 2009, sent via certified mail as directed in Civil Code
§1782, Plaintiff notified Defendant Levi Strauss of its violations of the Consumer Legal
Remedies Act and demanded that Defendant provide a remedy that rectifies its conduct.
By letter dated July 8, 2009, sent via certified mail as directed in Civil Code § 1782,
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Plaintiff notified Defendant J.C. Penney’s of its violations of the Consumer Legal
Remedies Act and demanded that Defendant provide a remedy that rectifies its conduct.
80.  Should Defendants fail to give or agree to give within a reasonable time a
sufficient remedy to all Class members as set forth in Civil Code § 1782(c) for the above-
mentioned violations of law, Plaintiff will seek to amend this Complaint to add claims for
damages and punitive damages under the CLRA on behalf of himself and the Class.
81. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to recover

injunctive relief.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(BREACH OF CONTRACT)
82.  Plaintiff incorporates the allegations of all the foregoing paragraphs by

reference, as if fully set forth herein.

83. There is a contract between Plaintiff and each Defendant. Each Defendant
expressly offered a free flight in exchange for the Plaintiff’s payment of $125 for Dockers-
brand clothing and the proper completion and timely submission of a Booking Form,
Plaintiff accepted Defendants’ offer by paying the requisite amount for Dockers clothing
and properly filling out and submitting a Booking Form.

84. Plaintiff performed his obligations under the contract. Because Defendants
offered a unilateral contract, Plaintiff’s acceptance of and performance under the contract
were accomplished by paying the requisite amount for Dockers-brand apparel and properly
and timely filling out the forms required.

85. Defendants breached the contract. Upon receipt of the Booking Form,
Defendants were required to contact Plaintiff within 10-14 days to confirm a travel
itinerary. Defendants were then obligated to confirm a reservation, send Plaintiff an e-
Ticket, or paper ticket, and itinerary. Defendants were also obligated to pass through only
the “taxes and fees” charged by applicable airports and airlines, rather than charging or

allowing its third party administrator to inflate those fees, while presenting them as
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attributable to the airport and airline. Despite these obligations, neither Defendants nor
their administrator ever contacted Plaintiff to arrange for a roundtrip flight

86.  Plaintiff was damaged. Plaintiff relied to his detriment upon Defendants’
promise to provide a “free” flight by paying $125 for Dockers-brand clothing and by
filling out a Booking Form. But for the Promotion, Plaintiff would not have paid that
much money, if any, for Dockers-brand clothing. Both Plaintiff and members of the Class
can demonstrate their reliance on Levi Strauss’s promises by the fact that they all filled out
Booking Forms. The contract created a legal right to a roundtrip flight or something of
equal or greater value. Defendants provided neither. Plaintiff has been deprived of that
right, and his damages include, but are not limited to, the cash value of the domestic flight

he bargained for.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(ALTERNATIVE RELIEF BASED ON QUASI-CONTRACT)

87. Defendants, by the actions alleged above, have collected money from Plaintiff

and Class members under such circumstances that in equity and good conscience it cannot
retain, and which in justice and fairness belongs to Plaintiff and the Class. Defendants
requested and obtained a benefit from Plaintiff and Class members by receiving money in
exchange for clothing and a roundtrip flight. Plaintiff and Class members conferred a
benefit on Defendants by expending the money sought by Defendant. Plaintiff and Class
members had a reasonable expectation of receiving the goods for which they paid.

88.  Under California law, unjust enrichment is a basis for obtaining restitution
based on quasi-contract, which is an obligation created by the law without regard to the
intention of the parties, and is designed to restore the aggrieved party to his or her former
position by returning the money attributable to the benefit conferred. Plaintiff and Class
members seek such a remedy in the alternative to the relief they seek based on their breach

of contract theory.
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89. Asaresult of Defendants’ violations, described above, they have unjustly
enriched themselves at the expense of Plaintiff and the Class. Defendants’ unjust
enrichment continues to accrue as they continue to engage in unlawful business acts and
practices and collect the challenged fees.

90. Defendants’ retention of money gained through unlawful and deceptive
practices is unjust considering the circumstances under which the funds were obtained.

91.  As aresult of the foregoing, Plaintiff and the Class were deprived of their
money and suffered loss as alleged above.

92.  To prevent its unjust enrichment, Defendants are required to identify, account
for, and fully remit all of its ill-gotten gains to Plaintiff and Class members.

93. The amount awarded should restore to Plaintiff and Class members, the
persons in interest, the money Defendants acquired by means of unfair competition.
Because Detendants bundled articles of clothing with a roundtrip flight in both its
Promotion and Terms and Conditions, Plaintiff and Class members had an ownership
interest in both items as soon as their money was accepted and the forms were duly filled
out. As bundled, the clothes and roundtrip flight constituted a package deal, for which
each Class member paid the minimum $125. The value of the flight outweighed the value
of the clothes. Therefore, a significant portion of the $125 {(an amount to be determined at
trial) paid by and traceable to each Class member should be returned as restitution.
Defendants should be ordered to return all such amounts to Plaintiff and the Class,
together with interest thereon.

94. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to recover from
Defendants restitution, injunctive relief, declaratory relief, an accounting, and any other

relief allowed by law and deemed just and equitable in the circumstances.
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VIII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests that the Court grant the following relief:

d.

An Order certifying this case as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P.
23(b)(2), (b)(3) and/or (¢)(4), and appointing Plaintiff as Class representatives
and his undersigned counsel as Class counsel;

An order of restitution in favor of Plaintiff and the Class;

An award of damages in favor of Plaintiff and the Class;

An injunction prohibiting Defendants and their successors, agents,
representatives, employees, and all persons who act in concert with any of
them, from making untrue or misleading statements as described in this
Complaint;

An accounting;

Pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1021.5, Cal. Civ. Code § 1780, and the Court’s inherent
equitable power, an order requiring Defendants to pay reasonable attorneys’
fees, costs and disbursements;

All other relief allowed at equity or law;

All other relief the Court deems just and proper in the circumstances.

ROSMAN & GERMAIN LLP

Dated: July 10, 2009 I-/- “-p 4%\

Daniel . Germain (CA Bar No. 143334)
16311 Ventura Boulevard

Suite 1200

Encino, CA 91436-2152

Telephone: (818) 788-0877

Facsimile: (818) 788-0885
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David M. Cialkowski (MN Bar No. 306526)
Brian C. Gudmundson (MN Bar No. 336695)
ZIMMERMAN REED, P.L.L.P.

651 Nicollet Mall, Suite 501

Minneapolis, MN 55402

Telephone: (612) 341-0400

Facsimile: (612) 341-0844

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Class
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.
ROSMAN & GERMAIN LLP

I [ ‘: ‘ -
Dated: July 10, 2009 : /

Daniel L. Germain (CA Bar No. 143334)
16311 Ventura Boulevard

Suite 1200

Encino, CA 91436-2152

Telephone: (818) 788-0877

Facsimile: (818) 788-0885

David M. Cialkowski (MN Bar No. 306526)
Brian C. Gudmundson (MN Bar No. 336695)
ZIMMERMAN REED, P.L.L.P.

651 Nicollet Mall, Suite 501

Minneapolis, MN 55402

Telephone: (612) 341-0400

Facsimile: (612) 341-0844

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Class
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DECLARATION OF RAYMOND P. CACCIOLI

I, Raymond P. Caccioli, declare as follows:

1. I am a Plaintiff in the accompanying Class Action Complaint entitled Caccioli v. J.C.
Penney Company, Inc., et al. 1 submit this declaration in support of the Class Action Complaint which
seeks injunctive relief pursuant to the Consumers Legal Remedies Act (California Civil Code § 1750, et
seq.).

2. Pursuant to Civil Code §1780(d), I hereby affirm that the United States District Court for
the Central District of California is the proper place for the trial of the action because each defendant sued
herein is or was at all relevant times doing business in the County of Los Angeles and the transaction or
any substantial portion thereof occurred in the County of Los Angeles.

3. I am a resident of the City of Los Angeles, in the County of Los Angeles. On June 6,

2007, I purchased from J.C. Penney Company, Inc. in excess of $125 in qualified Dockers Apparel and
Accessories in order to qualify for a round trip airline ticket pursuant to the “JCPenney’s Round Trip
Flight Promotion 2007.” The purchase was made at the J.C. Penney’s store at the Glendale Galleria Mall
in Glendale, California in the County of Los Angeles.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California and the United States of
America that the foregoing is true and correct and that I exequted this declaration on July 10, 2009 at Los
Angeles, California.

Raymond P. Caccioli

-1 -
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or other papers as required by law, This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required pursuant to Local Rule 3-1 is not filed
but is used by the Clerk of the Court for the purpose of statistics, venue and initiating the civil docket sheet. (For more detailed instructions, see separate instructions sheet.)

Key to Statistical codes relating to Soeial Security Cases:

Nafture of Suit Code  Abbreviation Substantive Statement of Cause of Action

B61 HIA All claims for health insurance benefits (Medicare) under Title 18, Part A, of the Soeial Security Act, as amended.
Also, include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, etc., for certification as providers of services under the
program, (42 U.S.C. 1935FF(b))

862 BL All claims for “Black Lung” benefits under Title 4, Part B, of the Federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Aet of 1965.
(30 U.8.C. 923)

863 DIWC All claims filed by insured workers for disability insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Acr, as
amended; plus all claims filed for child’s insurance benefits based on disability. (42 U.S.C. 405(g))

863 DIWW All claims filed for widows or widowers insurance benefits based on disability under Title 2 of the Social Security
Act, as amended. (42 U.S.C. 405(g))

864 SSID All claims for supplemental security income payments based upon disability filed under Title 16 of the Social Security
Act, as amended.

863 RSI All ¢laims for retirement (old age) and survivors benefits under Title 2 of the Soeial Security Aet, as amended. (42
US.C. (g)
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